


 

 

REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Thursday, July 24, 2014 – 4:00 p.m. 
Guam Visitors Bureau Main Conference Room 

 
A G E N D A  
I) CALL TO ORDER 

 
 

II) MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  Exhibit A 
 
Approval of minutes of the previous Board of Directors meeting dated July 10, 2014. 
 
 

III) REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN (M. Baldyga) 
 
 

IV) REPORT OF THE GENERAL MANAGER (K. Pangelinan)  Exhibit B 
 
 

V) REPORT OF THE TREASURER (Management)  Exhibit C 
 
 

VI) REPORT OF THE BOARD COMMITTEES 
 
A. E

XECUTIVE COMMITTEE (B. Kloppenburg) 
 
Motion to ratify Executive Committee’s approval for GVB’s FY2015 budget ceiling request 
of $23,700,000.00. 
 
Background:  
The Guam Legislature Committee on Appropriations, requests GVB’s FY2015 budget documents. 
 
Issue: 
Board approval required. 
 
 
B. ADMINISTRATION & GOV’T RELATIONS (J. Guthertz) 
 
 
C. JAPAN MARKETING (N. Nakajima)  
 
 
D. K

OREA MARKETING (Management)   
Committee Minutes dated July 15, 2014 Exhibit D 
 
 
 
 
E. NORTH AMERICA & PACIFIC MARKETS (A. Muna)  



 

 

 
 
F. G

REATER CHINA MARKETING (Management)  
Committee Minutes dated July 11, 2014 Exhibit E 
 
 
G. R

USSIA & NEW MARKETS (B. Jackson)  
 
 
H. D

ESTINATION MANAGEMENT (R. Hofmann)   
 
 
I. C

ULTURAL HERITAGE & COMMUNITY OUTREACH (T. Arriola) 
 
 
J. S

PORTS & EVENTS (N. Taimanglo)  
 
 
K. MEMBERSHIP DEVELOPMENT (Management) 
 
 
L. RESEARCH (N. Taimanglo) 
 
 

VII) OLD BUSINESS  
 
 

VIII) NEW BUSINESS  
 
 

IX) EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 

X) ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Next Board Meeting:  
 

o Thursday, August 14, 2014 at 4:00PM, GVB Main Conference Room 
 
 

XI) ADJOURNMENT 



 

 

Action Items: 
 

BY MANAGEMENT 
 

o Management to consider a revised 
China incentive program and to provide a recommendation to the board (4/10/14). 

 
o Chairman Baldyga mentioned that 

he would like to set meetings with GVB management and senators regarding the 
Tourism 2020 plan and 2015 budgets (4/10/14 and 2/27/14). 

 
o Chairman Baldyga asked 

management to create a Destination Management Task List with quarterly goals 
(4/10/14). 

 
o Chairman would like to have an 

update on the Tumon Flooding Mediation Plan and all capital projects. (2/27/14) 
 

o Chairman Baldyga requested to 
create an online community calendar or to create a new page for a community events 
calendar in the GVB website. (5/8/2014) 

 
o Chairman Baldyga requested the 

Task Management create a message to deliver to the media before June 9. (5/8/14) 
 

o General Manager Pangelinan to 
come up with a plan and budget to improve the welcoming experience at the airport. 
(7/10/14) 

 









  1

KOREA MARKETS COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, July 15, 2014, 11:00 a.m. 
GVB Main Conference Room 
 
Members Present: 
Oscar Miyashita, Ernst & Young 
Tae Oh, Sandcastle, Inc. 
Janeen Kang, Underwater World & Sea Grill 
Hyong Yi, Outrigger Guam Resort 
Terry Chung, DFS Guam   
Suzie Kim, Hilton Guam Resort & Spa 
Cris Gamboa, Onward Guam Resort 
Aaron Kim, Net Ent. 
Young Min Kim, Pacific Islands Club 
Elisha Lee, Lotte Hotel Guam 
Eric Ji, Sheraton Laguna Guam 
Yungjin Kong, HIT 
Dongsin Choi, Speed Travel Way 
Seonguk Jo, Leo Palace Resort 
 
 
Members Absent: 
Tak Takano, Pleasure Island Guam 
Bartley Jackson, Hotel Santa Fe 
Ken Yanagisawa, Pacific Islands Club 
Cathleen Moore-Linn, University of Guam 
Jace Kim, Jeju Air 
Theresa Crucena, Royal Orchid Guam 
Jennifer Chae, Hotel Nikko Guam 
Mr. Sung-Hwan Wang, KTB 
Man-soo Hyun, Hyatt Regency Guam 
Rolenda Faasuamalie, Guam International Airport Authority 
Jeremy Jung, Hana Tour 
Hugh Shin, Korean Air 
Sam H. Kim, Hana Tour 
Jong Bok Lee, JIN Air 
Jae Hong Lim, Mode Tour Network 
Jenny Cheon, Holiday Resort & Spa Guam 
 
Guests/Alternate Members Present: 
 
GVB Korea GSA Present (Telephonically): 
Henry Lee, TLK Korea 
 
GVB Korea PR Present (Telephonically): 
Adele Kim, Promac Partnership 
 
GVB Staff: 
Karl A. Pangelinan, General Manager 
Pilar Laguana, Marketing Manager 
Felix Reyes, Marketing Officer II 
Victor Chung, Intern 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
General Manager Karl A. Pangelinan called the meeting to order at 11:04 a.m. 



  2

 
MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MINUTES 
Motion to approve the minutes of the June 16, 2014 KMC Minutes was made by Mr. Tae Oh and was seconded 
by Mr. Aaron Kim. Minutes were approved subject to any minor corrections. 
 
REPORT OF CHAIRMAN 
 
 
REPORT OF MANAGEMENT 
Mr. Pangelinan welcomed everyone and thanked all for attending the meeting. 
 
Mr. Pangelinan reviewed the arrivals update data for CY and FY YTD.  MTD arrivals from Korea for June was at 
+33.7% over LY, same period.  FY YTD is at 28.9%.  Other markets like Russia and China show slight increases 
as well.  Japan is showing a -7.8% for June.  Challenges remain in Japan due to the sluggish economy.  He 
thanks those in the KMC for their hard work in keeping Korea numbers high. 
 
Mr. Pangelinan said he had spent some time in Busan just last week and felt this secondary city was very nice.  
He also mentioned United has officially announced direct daily flights from Incheon to Guam starting October 27, 
2014.  United has been out of the Korea market for a number of years. 
 
Lotte Hotel had their grand opening and brings another 200+ rooms to the inventory. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mr. 

Henry Lee briefed the committee on the details of the 3-month forecast for July – September.  
The storm that passed by Guam last week delayed some Korean flights but there were no cancellations. 
 
He said Korea continues to reflect double-digit increases for these three months over last year. 
 



  3

About 1,000 U.S. military members are coming in September so rooms may become an issue. 
 
KE Extra flights (4X/week) is helping with LF and seat capacity. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If the 2.0 

MS is maintained, GVB can achieve a 300,000 + Korean visitor arrivals during CY2014.  This may be due to 
United’s arrival into the market again. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mr. Lee briefed the committee on the 3-month activities and programs, including TV Home Shopping during 
August and September. 
 
The Hana Golf Tournament is not a Hana Tour staff tournament but rather hosted by Hana Tour.  This will be a 
first time tournament. 
 
GVB will host a roadshow in Busan and Daegu in September around BITF.   
 
Cheosuk Holiday is right before BITF. 
 
Per Adele, the BITF is September 12-15 while Chuseok is 6-10. 
 
Henry says he will review and perhaps plan for right after BITF for the roadshow. 
 
MICE is showing slight increases between January and June 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mr. 

explained the process of the Jin air Anniversary Sales Contest to the committee. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mr. 



  6

Kong, HIT Tour President, KMC member and KTAG President visited Korea recently.  He joined the KGMC and 
discussed the new safety program being printed for Guam, as well as other issues on the Guam side. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Two popular Korean Chefs attended the annual BBQ Block Party during July 5.  And although they did not win, 
there is hope next year will be much better with better preparation on what to bring and the process of the 
competition. 
 
 
Mr. Lee requested management and KMC how many booths to secure for the upcoming Mode Tour Int’l Travel 
Fair in late October. 
 
After some discussion, it was decided to have four booths forming a pavilion footprint and presentation with 
members joining GVB. 



  7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  8

 
Adele briefed the KMC on the Press Releases and Consumer Events slides.  J Travel gave GVB a full page ad. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Adele explained the details of the June Media Exposure slide. 
 
Chairman Miyashita asked Adele to prepare a report showing a quantified report with actual measurement at the 
next KMC meeting, including the Friday SNS events. 



  9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Adele Kim explained the details of the June 2014 showing media and where stories are covered. 
 
Chairman Miyashita asked Adele to elaborate more on some of the detailed amounts noted. 



  10

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sample of media coverage. 



  11

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Continuing coverage by media.  This copy shows Vice Speaker BJ Cruz at KOTFA 2014. 



  12

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sample of media coverage from Busan. 



  13

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  14

Media outreach samples for GMIF and Guam Live. Media commented they would like to interview the talents. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

KOTFA 2014 photos of awards won by GVB. 



  15

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

KOTFA leaflet used at KOTFA. 
 
 
 
 



  16

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Graph showing Korea website new member registrations.  Members must log on and register to view website 
information. 
 
Chairman Miyashita asked Adele to show the bars in the graph with LY and TY next to each other. 
 
Mr. Tae asked how many new members access the site as well as total hits. 
 
General Manager Pangelinan asked if the new members are new numbers. 
 
Adele said yes. 
 
KMC members may want to compare GVB’s Korea website to their own.  And some may want to reach the 
database members as well. 
 
The Global GVB website is still in the works. 
 
Adele asked the KMC members to provide stories to be posted on the Korea website. 



  17

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  18

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OLD BUSINESS     
a. Guam Events 

Guam BBQ Block Party, July 5 (Pleasure Island Street Front) 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
Upcoming Events 

a. GVB General Membership Meeting (Friday, July 18, 2014) 
b. Shop Guam Festival Update (November 1, 2014 – January 12, 2015. 



  19

Ms. Laguana briefed the committee on the event. 
 
GVB is looking for sponsors for streetlight banners and is extending the opportunity for first 
refusal to the KMC members. 
 
Mr. Pangelinan said several streetlights have no banner arms, especially along Farenholt 
Avenue. 
 
Ms. Laguana said there will be scheduled vendor training to allow for staff turn-overs, changes, 
etc.  She encourages vendors to conduct in-house training of staff as well and to put up stickers 
indicating their participation. 
 
She said there will not be any street party or fashion show this time. 
 
Chairman Miyashita asked if K-pax are still keen to not using coupons. 
 
Some KMC members agree but some also said it should not be an issue. 
 
Ms. Laguana said the use of mobile marketing will be much wider this year and the SGF app will 
be upgraded. 

 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Lotte Hotel Grand Opening was held earlier in the week. 
 
NEXT KMC MEETING 
Tuesday, August 12, 2014, 11:00 a.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Upon no further discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Tae Oh and seconded by Mr. Terry Chung to adjourn the 
meeting at 11:50 a.m.. 
 
 
PREPARED BY:   ________________/s/___ ____________________ 
     Felix Reyes, Marketing Office II 
 
 
APPROVED BY:  _______________/s/_________________________ 
    Pilar Laguaña, Marketing Manager 



 

 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING  
GVB MAIN CONFERENCE ROOM - 4:00PM 
THURSDAY; July 10, 2014 
 
BOARD of DIRECTORS PRESENT: 
Chairman Baldyga Vice Chairman Kloppenburg 
Judith Guthertz Bartley Jackson 
Eduardo “Champ” Calvo Oscar Miyashita 
Milton Morinaga Norio Nakajima 
Robert Hofmann Nathan Taimanglo 
Jennifer Camacho Annmarie Muna 
 
BOARD of DIRECTORS TELEPHONICALLY: 
 
 
BOARD of DIRECTORS ABSENT: 
Theresa Arriola 
 
GVB MANAGEMENT & STAFF PRESENT: 
Karl Pangelinan Pilar Laguana  Joshua Tyquiengco 
Colleen Cabedo Nadine Leon GuerreroKraig Camacho 
Felix Reyes Ana Cid  Regina Nedlic 
Brian Borja Dee Hernandez  June Sugawara 
Elaine Pangelinan Nakisha Onedera  Gina Kono 
Laurette Perez Mark Manglona 
 
GUESTS:  
Victor Chung – GVB Marketing Intern 
 

 

 Proceedings: 

 
Chairman Baldyga called the regular meeting of the board to order at 4:08 p.m. 
 
Approval of previous board minutes dated June 12, 2014.Exhibit A 
 
Motion made by Director Guthertz, seconded by Vice Chairman Kloppenburg, to approve the 
minutes of June 12, 2014. 
 
Motion approved (subject to correction). 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Chairman’s Report:  



 

 

 

Regular Board Meeting – July 10, 2014 (2/15)

 
 Chairman Baldyga reported that he had 

been off-island for the past month. 
 
 While off-island, attended the Dynamic 

Airways Inaugural Press Conference and Gala in Beijing, China. He also reported that General 
Manager Pangelinan, Marketing Manager Pilar Laguana, Governor Calvo and himself had a very 
fruitful meeting with CITS and their Chairwoman, Madam Wu. They had a two-hour meeting for 
which they discussed how they would grow the market and the possibility ofobtaining as much as 
150,000 Chinese visitors within a few years. He went on to mention that he would share with the 
board his minutes from that meeting.Some key takeaways from the meeting were that they all 
agreed that it would be a multi-year commitment,recognizing that everyone would in the red for the 
first couple of years, and to make sure that there is appropriate signage at the destination.  

 
 Chairman Baldyga reported that there was 

a lot of media at the press conference, with General Manager being the speaker. Mentioned to the 
board that some of the media at the press conference had been to Guam before. Furthermore, 
Chairman Baldyga reported that the gala was very nice. DFS was there as a sponsor of the event 
and gave out some prizes. He went on to report that Governor Calvo, Madam Wu, and General 
Manager Pangelinan gave brief speeches, and of those that attended, there were around 150 travel 
agents.  

 
 Tracking back to what Madam Wu 

discussed in their meeting, Chairman Baldyga suggested that signage should become a priority 
and had stressed to the board that they would need to take the time and effort to plan and clean up 
the signs. Chairman Baldyga suggested having pictographic signs with different languages in small 
fonts at bus stops and crosswalks. He tasked General Manager Pangelinan to come up with a 
plan and budget to improve the welcoming experience at the airport. 

 
 Chairman Baldyga called upon Marketing 

Manager Pilar Laguana to give the board a brief insight on the China market and how the board could 
help strengthen its efforts.  
Marketing Manager, Pilar Laguana: 

o Started off by thanking their board for their 
support and also thanked the staff for handling the many inquires that they’ve had with the 
many media that were and are currently on island. 

o Reported that July would be a start up month 
for Dynamic flights. Went on to report that Dynamic has been bringing in many media from 
Beijing, including traditional media, social media, and more. She even mentioned that there 
is a team currently on Guam, creating a guidebook called NiHao Guam, in order to 
generate more promotional material. 

o She reported that when the media first 
arrived on Guam their reactions were remarkable. She reported that some consumers on 
YuKu (China’s Youtube) and other social media outlets, couldn’t believe how blue our sky 
was and how great the shopping is. This just makes the media so much more important, 
because the media can have the experience firsthand and transmit that experience to the 
consumers in China.  

o We have had several interviews at the GVB 
office with China media. She reported that she would ask the media for written questions, 
before the interview to assure that the media would get an accurate response.  

o She reported that those interviews are 
making their way into publications and stories in magazines, newspapers, and more. She 
mentioned that there are a lot of positive things that are coming out from China. Some key 
factors that the media had mentioned about Guam are its pristine environment and 



 

 

 

Regular Board Meeting – July 10, 2014 (3/15)

fabulous shopping. She illustrated many of the media felt a sense of relaxation and clarity 
when they first stepped out of the airport. She also described that the media was very 
impressed with the value and variety they were getting for luxury goods. She mentioned 
that she had asked the media how much value they were getting and they reported back to 
her by saying around 40-50%. 

o She went on to report that tourism industry 
relations would need more support. She mentioned to the board that she already had a 
meeting with ground tour operators and will discuss with Director Jackson on further 
addressing those issues to improve service levels.  

o She said it ultimately comes down to 
preparedness. General Manager Pangelinan added by saying that we should be involved 
with more China symposiums, roundtables, workshops, and more. 

o Ms. Laguna addressed the need to support 
more in the travel agents. She discussed with the board that the travel agents feel that they 
are takinga huge risk, especially this being a start-up.  

o She also addressed that there is an 
increasing problemwith visas being refused/rejected. She had mentioned that she had 
written to the U.S. Commercial Service, concerning this issue and is waiting a response. 

o She answered a question on the visa process 
timeline by saying that it depends on the season, but would take as early as 3 and as long 
as 7 days.  

o As Ms. Laguana wrapped up her report, 
Chairman Baldyga and the rest of the board recognized her and the rest of the China 
Marketing Staff, for a job well done. 

 
 The board discussed different ways to 

differentiate Guam from other destinations, specifically Hawaii. They talked about possibly having a 
daily air quality measurement on our website, the possibility of promoting packages for fewer days, 
among others.  

 

 General Manager’s Report:  Exhibit B 
Budget Work Sheets 

 
 General Manager Pangelinan directed the 

board to Exhibit E, whichGVB had made comments to the JGPO office in regards to the visa 
waivers. Thanked Chairman Baldyga for taking the leadon the letter and was very proud of how it 
turned out. 

 
 Mentioned on Friday, July 11, 2014 at 

10:00 a.m., there would be a hearing for 14 TAF Bills, mostly regarding FestPac. The board had 
looked over the copy of the testimony.  



 

 

 

Regular Board Meeting – July 10, 2014 (4/15)

 
 Mentioned that United had announced direct flights from Shaghai and Incheon starting late 

October. Flights from Incheon would be daily and Shanghai would be twice weekly.  

 

 
 Reported that according to TAF collections 

year-to-date, we are well ahead of last year’s pace. For the next 4 months, assuming that the 
numbers are the same from last year, we should track at $31.2 million by the end of the fiscal year. 
Our projection for FY15 is $32 million, which is quite conservative considering we will have more 
available rooms, with the opening of Lotte Hotel and Dusit Thani.  



 

 

 

Regular Board Meeting – July 10, 2014 (5/15)

 The board suggested sending out a press 
release on the TAF, indicating that although GVB supports those appropriations, we needto seek 
more funding to make up for those tourism dollars. 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Regular Board Meeting – July 10, 2014 (6/15)

 

 

 
 Chairman Baldyga requested that Special 

Projects and Destination Maintenance be made separate.  



 

 

 

Regular Board Meeting – July 10, 2014 (7/15)

 

 
 
 The board agreed to set a working session 

to have time to discuss the budgets in more detail next week Thursday, July 17, 2014 at 4:00pm. 
 
 

 Treasurer’s Report:(O. Miyashita)  Exhibit D 
 
Cash Position Report: 
Cash report as of July 7, 2014. 
Total cash in banks report (as of 7/7/14) $13,110,918.08 
Total allotment received to date: $11,822,547.55 
Accounts Receivable FY2014: $6,439,586.45 
Accounts Payable to Date: $4,958,637.32 
 
 Director Miyashita reported that there is a 

reduction in cash from last year. 
 
 Also reported that we are behind in 

collecting allotments. We should be expecting another $1 million in the next week or so. Would 
hope to have a better report by next board meeting. 

 
 Chairman Baldya asked General Manager 

Pangelinan about the story in the newspaper on how we didn’t respond to a FOIA request on time. 



 

 

 
 

Regular Board Meeting – July 10, 2014 (8/15) 

General Manager Pangelinan replied by saying we had the material, unfortunately we lost track of 
time because everyone was busy with Fourth of July and the BBQ Block Party.  

 
 Chairman Baldya also asked General 

Manager Pangelinan about the status of the protest with PDS. General Manager reported that the 
ruling seems to look in GVB’s favor, so they are now able to negotiate with G4S.  

 
 

 Report of the Board Committees: 
 

A. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE(B. Kloppenburg) 
 
Vice Chairman Kloppenburg made a motion, seconded by Director Guthertz, to ratify Executive 
Committee’s approval for the travel of Mr. Yuji Mitsumori, GVB Japan Manager, to attend the 
Special Japan Marketing Committee Meeting on June 24, 2014. Travel dates are from June 23 – 25, 
2014. (Estimated Cost: $1,325.00 from Account JA-SMD-004) 
 
Motion Approved. 
 
Travel Expenses: 
Airfare (1 pax):          $850.00 
includes domestic/ground transportation and  
  Airport Tax and Service charges  
Guam Per Diem ($62.50 x 2 nights):                            $125.00 
Lodging ($175.00 x 2 nights):       $350.00 
 
 Total       $1,325.00 
 
Background:  The JMC has scheduled a special committee meeting for Tuesday, June 24, 2014 to act 
on Japan Market’s FY2015 budget request. Japan is Guam’s prime market and due to decreasing levels 
in visitor arrivals, the operations and promotional efforts for FY2015 necessitates are taken careful 
consideration in its budget requirements.   
 
Issue:  Board approval required for travel. 
 
 
Vice Chairman Kloppenburg made a motion, seconded by Director Calvo, to ratify Executive 
Committee’s approval for the travel of one GVB Osaka Marketing and Sales staff to assist with the 
Okayama City Delegation visit from July 3 - 6, 2014. (Travel duration during July 2~6, 2014. 
Estimated maximum cost $1,799.00; account #SMD004). 
 
Motion Approved. 
 
Background:  GVB Osaka staff will assist with Okayama City Delegation in their courtesy calls, 
commemorative lecture on recycle bins, and a lunch reception on July 5. Last year, City of Okayama 
donated 30 compartmentalized garbage bins to the Government of Guam.  
 
 
 
Breakdown is as follows: Total

Airfare (1 pax) $755.00



 

 

 
 

Regular Board Meeting – July 10, 2014 (9/15) 

Per Diem - GVB Japan Staff $62.5 x 4 nights x 1 pax $250.00

Round transportation to airport in Japan x 1 pax $94.00

Lodging $175.00 x 4 nights $700.00

TOTAL $1,799.00

 
Issue:  Board approval required for all travel 
 
 
Vice Chairman Kloppenburg made a motion, seconded by Director Guthertz, to ratify Executive 
Committee’s approval for the authorization of the General Manager as Chief Procurement Officer 
of the Bureau to negotiate and enter into a contract with the highest rated responsive offeror of 
GVB RFP 2014-003, Visitor Safety Officers Project. 
 
Motion Approved. 
 
Background:  The Guam Visitors Bureau (GVB) has a vested interest in protecting and ensuring the 
safety and security of all visitors and the local community. There has been a rise in crimes against tourists 
in Tumon, which threatens Guam’s image as a safe, family-friendly destination. Negative impacts to 
Guam’s number one industry would have devastating effects on the local economy and lead to a loss of 
jobs and Government tax revenue. 
 
In response to this, GVB will be launching the Visitor Safety Officer Pilot Program. The Bureau will 
contract Visitor Safety Officers (VSO) to patrol the Tumon area, both roadside and beachside. VSOs will 
serve dual roles as both a security guard and tour guide, able to respond to safety and security incidents 
and provide basic visitor information such as directions. 
 
Issue:  Board approval required. 
 
 
Vice Chairman Kloppenburg made a motion, seconded by Director Jackson, to ratify Executive 
Committee’s approval for the travel of CHaCO Chairwoman Theresa Arriola, one CHaCO staff, 
Master Frank Rabon and 2 assistants to attend the US-Guam Chamorro Dance Academy in 
Seattle, Washington from August 14 - 19, 2014. (Estimated cost up to $20,076.50, Acct No. DM-
CPO006). 
 
Motion Approved. 
 
Background:  The US-Guam Chamorro Dance Academy workshop was launched in March of this year in 
California with 75 participants. The Bureau will be continuing to work closely with the various active 
stateside Chamorro dance groups that are in need of more training to be qualified for FestPac 2016. 
During the workshops, the CHaCO Chairwoman will be giving an update on FestPac 2016. 
Airfare  $2,500.00  5  $12,500.00 
Per Diem    

Seattle (4pax)  $152.00  5  $3,040.00 
  $71.00  6  $1,704.00 

Therese  $190.00  5  $950.00 
  $88.75  6  $532.50 

Prof Fees    
Master Frank  $100.00  3  $300.00 



 

 

 
 

Regular Board Meeting – July 10, 2014 (10/15) 

(2) Assistants  $50.00  3  $300.00 
Car Rental    
  $150.00  5  $750.00 
    $20,076.50 
 
 
Vice Chairman Kloppenburg made a motion, seconded by Director Jackson, to ratify Executive 
Committee’s approval for the travel of the General Manager to attend meetings in Tokyo, Japan for 
the Guam Sports Events Incorporated on July 14, 2014. (Account No. JA-SMD008. Estimated cost 
of travel $1,480.00) 
 
Motion Approved. 
 
Background:  Pacific Islands Club, United Airlines and the Guam Visitors Bureau formed a non-profit 
organization to take over the Guam International Marathon. To ensure successful promotions within 
Japan the non-profit sent out a RFP to various PR companies.  Presentations will be conducted on July 
14 in Tokyo, Japan. 
 
Per diem $408 x 125% = $510.00 
Airfare: $970.00 
TOTAL: $1,480.00 
 
 
Vice Chairman Kloppenburg made a motion, seconded by Director Jackson, to ratify Executive 
Committee’s approval for the travel of one JMC Chair, Deputy General Manager, Miss Guam and 
one marketing staff to attend the Kashiwa Festival from July 23 – 28, 2014. (Account JA-SMD008; 
Estimated cost of travel $11,348.00) 
 
Motion Approved. 
 
Background:  This year marks the 23rd anniversary of the signing of our friendship agreement. This year 
In keeping with our Friendship Agreement signed in 1991, a group of students from Kashiwa come to 
Guam every year.  In exchange Guam participates in the festival that includes a trip to Guam as a grand 
prize awarded on the main stage.  In addition to the Kashiwa Festival the JMC Chair and Deputy General 
Manager will attend various meetings with travel industry officials.  
 
 
 
 
 

Delegation Per diem Days  Airfare Total 

Milton Morinaga $510.00 5 $2,550.00 $950.00 $3,500.00 

Jon Nathan Denight $510.00 5 $2,550.00 $950.00 $3,500.00 

Miss Guam $408.00 3 $1,224.00 $950.00 $2,174.00 

Nadine Leon Guerrero $408.00 3 $1,224.00 $950.00 $2,174.00 

    TOTAL $11,348.00 

 
 



 

 

 
 

Regular Board Meeting – July 10, 2014 (11/15) 

B. ADMINISTRATION & GOV’T RELATIONS(J. Guthertz) 
 
 TAF appropriations were discussed during 

the GM’s report. 
 
 
C. MILITARY BUILD-UP & SEIS(B. Kloppenburg) 
GVB’s Final Comments to Draft SEIS Exhibit E 
 
 Exhibit E was discussed in GM’s report. 

 
 
D. RESEARCH(N. Taimanglo) 
 
 Nothing to report. 

 
 
E. JAPAN MARKETING(M. Morinaga / N. Nakajima) 
Committee Minutes dated June 18, 2014 Exhibit F 
 
 Chairman Baldyga asked for feedback on the $400,000.00 spent for additional advertisements in 

Japan (i.e. subway ads). MO2 Nadine Leon Guerrero replied by saying that there is an impact, but 
will now more with July figures. 

 
 Vice Chairman Kloppenburg asked if there would be any increase in outboard with the typhoon in 

Okinawa. Director Nakajima replied by saying that it shouldn’t have any affect. 
 
 
F.  KOREA MARKETING(O. Miyashita) 
Committee Minutes dated June 17, 2014 Exhibit G 
 
 Director Miyashita reported that Korean Air had announced 4 extra flights a weekfrom July 26-August 

27. 
 
 Jin Air announced that they would upgrade to Boeing 777 byDecember 2014. 

 
 Jin Air announced possible flights from Daegu to Guam by end of the year. (3rd largest city in Korea; 

with 2.5 million people) 
 United-Korea announced daily flights from Incheon to Guam starting October 26. 

 
 Director Miyashita reported that load factor 

out of Busan continues to be low. The Ferry sinking incident still has some impact. 
 
 Emphasized that we need to be more 

tenacious for global market share in Korea. 
 
 
G. NORTH AMERICA & PACIFIC MARKETS(A. Muna) 
 
 Nothing to report. 

 
 
H. GREATER CHINA MARKETING(B. Kloppenburg)  



 

 

 
 

Regular Board Meeting – July 10, 2014 (12/15) 

Amended Committee Minutes dated June 6, 2014 Exhibit H 
 
VisitUSA China: Wuhan Road Show  
Vice Chairman Kloppenburg made a motion, seconded by Director Calvo to approve travel for 
Marketing Manager & Staff to participate in the VisitUSA China: Wuhan Road Show in Wuhan, 
Hubei Province from July 22-28, 2014 and to conduct business meetings in Beijing with media, 
and airline/travel partners. (Cost approximately $8,676.00 from FY2009 Excess Fund Account, CI-
FY2009) 
 
Motion Approved. 
Note: Director Guthertz was out of the room for the vote. 
 
Travel Expense: 

Air Fare 
Roundtrip: GUM/CI/GUM 
$2000.00 x 2 pax 

$4,000.00

  

Registration 
Non-Member = $850.00 per 
city 

$850.00

  
Per Diem GVB Marketing Staff 

 
  Wuhan Lodging: $152.00 x 
2 nights x 2 pax 

$608.00

 
  Wuhan M&IE: $118.00 x 2 
days x 2 pax 

$472.00

 
  Beijing Lodging: $258.00 x 2 
nights x 2 pax 

$1,032.00 

 
  Beijing M&IE:  $119.00 x 3 
days x 2 pax  

$714.00

 Total 
$2,826.00

Miscellaneous Expenses: 

Excess 
baggage/Communication 
costs /Unanticipated 
expenses 

$1,000.00

  
TOTAL:  $8,676.00

Background: 
VisitUSA China: Wuhan Road Show is a VisitUSA China event offering great learning, media exposure 
and business development opportunities for Committee members. Member travel suppliers, destinations 
and CVBs will train client-facing staff from leading agencies on your products, and hold face to face 
matchmaking meetings with the Chinese travel agents, tour operators and media. VisitUSA China: 
Wuhan Road Show is an event of unique scope and importance in the outbound Chinese travel industry 
to the USA, presenting excellent networking and prime business opportunities with an eager and 
welcoming Chinese audience made up of travel trade.  It is important for GVB to participate in this 
roadshow as a US consulate with the ability to process Chinese visas, which has opened in this region.  
 
GVB shall conduct important business meetings in Beijing with media from Guam familiarization tours as 
well as with airline and travel trade partners. In addition GVB needs to conduct face-to-face meetings with 
Beijing media buyers to ensure that ad placements are in line with GVB’s strategic goals as well as to 
ensure that cost efficiency of media buys.  
 
Issue: 
Board approval for travel required. 



 

 

 
 

Regular Board Meeting – July 10, 2014 (13/15) 

 
 

 Next Greater China Commiittee Meeting 
would be Friday, July 11 at 11:00 a.m. 

 
 
I. RUSSIA & NEW MARKETS(B. Jackson) 
 
 Director Jackson reported that the individual 

that was incarcerated for credit card fraud was not on Guam at the time. The Russian individual was 
brought to Guam from the Maldives and arrested here on U.S. soil. 

 
 
J. DESTINATION MANAGEMENT(R. Hofmann)  
Committee Minutes dated June 24, 2014 Exhibit I 
 
 Director Hofmann reported that fire hydrants 

have been painted.  
 
 Mentioned that anyone wants to know more, 

the minutes from the previous committee meeting are attached. 
 
 

K. CULTURAL HERTITAGE & COMMUNITY OUTREACH(T. Arriola) 
 
 Nothing to report. 

 
 
L. SPORTS & EVENTS(N. Taimanglo / J. Camacho)  
Committee Minutes dated June 25, 2014 Exhibit J 
 
 Director Camacho reported that the their 

meeting minutes are included in the board packet. They are working on a financial and economic 
impact reportfor the board regarding the breakdownof the Guam Live and Guam BBQ Block Party. 

 
M. MEMBERSHIP DEVELOPMENT(J. Camacho)  
 
 Director Camacho reported that the next quarterly membership meeting would be Friday, July 18 at 

P.I.C. and announced that our guest speaker would be from Dynamic.  
 
 

 OLD BUSINESS 
 

 No old business. 
 
 

 NEW BUSINESS  
 
 No new business. 

 
 

 EXECUTIVE SESSION 



 

 

 
 

Regular Board Meeting – July 10, 2014 (14/15) 

 
 No executive session. 

 
 

 ANNOUNCEMENT 
 

o Board Working Session: Thursday, July 17, 2014 at 4:00PM, GVB Main Conference Room 
 
Next Board Meeting: 

o Thursday, July 24, 2014 at 4:00PM, GVB Main Conference Room 
 
GVB Events: 
 

o Hearing on TAF Bills – Friday, July 11, 2014 at 10:00am. 
 

o Breakfast w/ Liberators - Thursday, July 17, 2014 from 7:30am – 9:00am in the GVB Main 
Conference Room. 

 
o Membership Meeting, Friday, July 18, 2014 from 11:30am – 1:00pm at the Tasa/Isa Banquet 

Rooms, Pacific Islands Club. 
o Speaker: Yu Alicia Gao, Dynamic Airways, Greater China Director/Chief Representative, 

China Affairs 
 

o Liberation Day Parade – Monday, July 21, 2014. (GVB CLOSED)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 ADJOURNMENT 
 
Director Calvo made a motion, seconded by Director Hofmann, to adjourn the meeting. Meeting 
adjourned at 5:10pm. 
 
Motion Approved. 
 
 

 
Ms. Theresa C. Arriola, Secretary of the Board of Directors 

 
 

Board Minutes respectively submitted by Colleen Cabedo, Executive Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Action Items: 
 



 

 

 
 

Regular Board Meeting – July 10, 2014 (15/15) 

BY MANAGEMENT 
 

o Management to consider a revised China 
incentive program and to provide a recommendation to the board (4/10/14). 

 
o Chairman Baldyga mentioned that he 

would like to set meetings with GVB management and senators regarding the Tourism 
2020 plan and 2015 budgets (4/10/14 and 2/27/14). 

 
o Chairman Baldyga asked management to 

create a Destination Management Task List with quarterly goals (4/10/14). 
 

o Chairman would like to have an update on 
the Tumon Flooding Mediation Plan and all capital projects. (2/27/14) 

 
o Chairman Baldyga requested to create an 

online community calendar or to create a new page for a community events calendar in the 
GVB website. (5/8/2014) 

 
o Chairman Baldyga requested the Task 

Management create a message to deliver to the media before June 9. (5/8/14) 
 

o General Manager Pangelinan to come up 
with a plan and budget to improve the welcoming experience at the airport. (7/10/14) 

 
 
 



7/24/14	  

1	  

HÅFA ADAI 
GUAM VISITORS BUREAU 

FY2015 Budget Presentation Part III 

General Manager Karl A. Pangelinan 
July 24, 2014 

PRELIMINARY MTD Visitor Arrivals 
July 1 - 22, 2014 
Total:  76,444 (-1.7%) 

% Market Mix Origin Pax % to LY 
55.6% Japan 42,467 -14.8% 

23.4% Korea 17,873 19.2% 

4.6% US/Hawaii 3,530 11.3% 

7.2% Taiwan 5,472 24.8% 

1.6% China 1,217 101.8% 

2.4% Russia 1,858 419.0% 



7/24/14	  

2	  

GVB BUDGET 

TAF FY2015 BREAKDOWN 
TOTAL % of Total 

FY 2015 TAF Projection $34,500,000.00 100% 

FY 2015 GVB Budget $23,700,000.00 69% 

Direct Appropriations $2,741,485 8% 

Bond Payments $6,997,819.00 20% 

Balance $1,060,696.00 3% 

69%	  

20%	  

3%	  

8%	  

GVB	  Budget	  	  

Bond	  Payments	  

Balance	  

Direct	  Approp.	  



7/24/14	  

3	  

TAF COLLECTIONS 

TAF ANALYSIS 
TAF YOY DIFF 

2011  $22,878,373  

2012 $26,054,475  $3,176,103  

2013  $28,606,196   $2,551,721  

2014  $32,000,000  $3,393,804  

2015  $34,500,000  $2,500,000 

LOTTE HOTEL DUSIT THANI 
Rooms 222   417 

Room Nights 81,030 152,205  
Avg Room Rate  $200  $200  

Occupancy 70%  70% 
Hotel Occupancy Tax $1,247,862 (1 year) $1,171,979 (6 months) 

*Example	  of	  addiHonal	  TAF	  contribuHons	  in	  2014	  &	  2015	  



7/24/14	  

4	  

GVB BUDGET SUMMARY 

FY 2014 REQUEST FY 2014 BUDGET FY 2015 MGMT 
REQUEST % DIFF 

Administration  2,917,120.00   2,917,120.00   3,200,000.00  9.7% 

Marketing  10,478,000.00   10,420,000.00   15,502,000.00  48.8% 

Non-Marketing 
(Research, Sports & 

Events, CHaCO, Visitor 
Safety & Satisfaction) 

 2,150,014.00   2,150,014.00   2,998,000.00  3.9% 

Capital Improvement 
Projects  940,000  940,000.00   915,000.00  -2.7% 

Destination 
Maintenance  1,060,000.00   1,060,000.00   1,085,000.00  2.4% 

TOTAL 18,045,134.00  17,487,134.00   23,700,000.00  35.5% 

GVB BUDGET 

FY 2015 BUDGET Request 
TOTAL: $23,700,000.00 

Administration
; 14% 

Marketing; 
65% 

Capital 
Improvement 
Projects; 4% 

Destination 
Maintenance; 

5% 
Non-

Marketing; 
13% 

Administration; 
17% 

Marketing; 60% 

Capital 
Improvement 
Projects; 5% 

Destination 
Maintenance; 

6% 

Non-
Marketing; 

12% 

FY 2014 BUDGET 
TOTAL: $17,487,134.00 



7/24/14	  

5	  

GVB BUDGET - ADMINISTRATION 

FY 2014 FY 2015 BUDGET 
REQUEST 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION $2,917,120 $3,200,000 

•  Increase of $282,880 over FY2014 

•  Additional personnel costs due to increments, merit bonuses, Medicare 

contributions and health insurance benefits. 

•  Increase in power and water costs 

•  Addition of 4 more new positions (FTEs)  

GVB BUDGET - MARKETING 

•  FY2014 Forecast: 1.35 Million Visitors 
•  FY2015 Projection: 1.427 Million 

•  Refocus on Japan 
•  $2.3M Budget Increase to $8M 
•  FY15 Goal: 940,000 pax 
•  Conduct low season promotions targeting family and group 
•  Continue working with JGTC to improve yield 
•  Improve share of voice from .5% to 1% with Co-op and TV advertising 

•  Continued Growth in Korea 
•  $600K Budget Increase to $2M 
•  FY15 Goal: 280,000 pax 
•  Build Brand Awareness through marketing campaigns 
•  Additional Air Carriers and Gateways 

FY 2014 FY 2015 BUDGET REQUEST 

TOTAL MARKETING $10,420,000 $15,502,000 



7/24/14	  

6	  

GVB BUDGET - MARKETING 

•  Diversify: Russia  

•  Russia budget increased by $220K to reach $700K 

•  Russia Goal: 15,000 pax 

•  Foster relationship with airlines to provide regular direct air service 

•  Increase Guam awareness through continued advertising & key campaigns 

•  Participate in MITT and PITE 2015 

FY 2014 FY 2015 BUDGET REQUEST 

TOTAL MARKETING $10,420,000 $15,502,000 

•  Diversify: China 

•  China budget decrease by $592,500 to $2M 

•  China Goal: 25,000 pax 

•  Increase direct air service 

•  Comprehensively enhance Chinese travelers’ awareness of Guam through travel trade, 

eye-catching advertisement campaigns, exhibitions and sales incentive programs. 

•  Joint promotion with TAs and MICE companies 

GVB BUDGET - MARKETING 

•  Hong Kong 

•  Budget status quo at $215K 

•  FY15 Goal Pax: 14,000 

•  Engage in Joint Promotions, market development and increase media exposure in 

wedding/honeymoon, education, sports, and cultural tourism 

FY 2014 FY 2015 BUDGET REQUEST 

TOTAL MARKETING $10,420,000 $15,502,000 

•  Philippines 

•  Budget increased by $70K to $220,000 

•  FY15 Goal Pax: 12,450 
•  Increase Guam awareness through a sustained year-round publicity program and 

Media Fam Tours 
•  Cultivate MICE market through Guam Product Seminars to corporate incentive 

planners and partnering with corporate account managers for Airlines and TAs 
•  Engage airlines and travel agents for partnership in promotions and trade-related 

industry events 
•  Increase GVB Philippines’ social networking reach 



7/24/14	  

7	  

GVB BUDGET - MARKETING 

•  North America/ Military 

•  Budget increase by $40K to $220K 

•  FY2015 Goal Pax: 80,231 

•  Attend LA Times Travel Show, LA Adventure & Travel Show & Che’lu Inc’s Cultural Festival  

•  VFR – Visiting Friends & Family: Expand outreach 

•  71st Liberation Day activities and travel 

•  Attend Scuba Show and DEMA in June 2015 

•  Social Media – Show Us Your Chamorro Campaign 

FY 2014 FY 2015 BUDGET REQUEST 

TOTAL MARKETING $10,420,000 $15,502,000 

•  Cruise Shipping 

•  FY2015 Goal Pax: 3,500 

•  Work with the Port Authority to improve port arrival/departure experience, as well as 

MCA and regional ports to extend incentives 

•  Create a cruise dedicated website with the MCA & sample cruise itinerary packages 

•  Micronesia Roadshow w/ PATA MIC and other cruise events  

GVB BUDGET - MARKETING 

•  Pacific/Micronesia/Australia/Europe  

•  Budget increase by $22K to $120K 

•  FY15 Goal Pax: 41,800 

•  Integrate & develop campaigns with MicronesiaTour.com with GVB Website 

•  Increase Guam’s Dive Market in Australia/Micronesia as a world class destination 

•  PATA meetings and conferences, link in FestPac 2016/ GMIF 

•  AIDE/Asia Dive Expo 2014 

•  Bi-Annual Micronesian Chief Executive’s Summit (MCES) 

FY 2014 FY 2015 BUDGET REQUEST 

TOTAL MARKETING $10,420,000 $15,502,000 

•  Taiwan 

•  Budget increase by $117K to $487K 

•  FY15 Goal Pax: 54,338 

•  Increase social media outreach efforts (i.e. facebook page to over 60,000 likes) 

•  Promote M.I.C.E Market and key campaigns (Destination Weddings, Sports Tourism/

MICE ,ITF/FESTPAC 2016) 



7/24/14	  

8	  

GVB BUDGET - MARKETING 

•  Global Website: $330,000 

•  In FY2014, GVB launched the new global website in English and will launch Japan and 

Mainland China by the end of the Fiscal Year. In FY 2015, GVB will launch the Russian, 

Korean and Traditional Chinese websites. 

•  Showcase Chamorro Culture & What Guam has to offer visitors. 

•  Cater to growing online audience seeking information about Guam. 

•  Optimized Tablet and Smart Phone sites 

•  Highlight Villages of Guam, history and cultural events. 

•  Connect local businesses directly with the consumer. 

•  Launch Microsites for specific campaign related events (i.e. ShopGuam, BBQ Block Party) 

FY 2014 FY 2015 BUDGET REQUEST 

TOTAL MARKETING $10,420,000 $15,502,000 

GVB BUDGET - MARKETING 
FY 2014 FY 2015 BUDGET REQUEST 

TOTAL MARKETING $10,420,000 $15,502,000 

•  Social Media Support: $290,000 
•  Budget remains the same. 
•  Advanced software to monitor social media channels in 6 different markets. 
•  Ability to respond, monitor or respond to complaints and trending topics. 

•  Branding: $470,000 
•  Budget increased by $20K 
•  Continue success of Håfa Pledge Program & Håfa Adai Rate Program 
•  Support Guam Brand development 
•  Provide community outreach on benefits of tourism 

•  Printing Promotion: $450,000 
•  Budget increased by $188K 
•  Supply promotional materials to key source markets and local campaigns about Guam. 



7/24/14	  

9	  

GVB BUDGET – Research 

RESEARCH FY2014 
Approved 

FY2015 
Request 

TOTAL REQUEST $430,014 $448,000 

•  Slight Increase (4%) 
•  Include Russia & China Exit Surveys 

GVB BUDGET – CHaCO 

Cultural Heritage & Community Outreach 
(CHaCO) 

FY2014 
Approved 

FY2015 
Request 

TOTAL REQUEST $720,000.00 $750,000.00 

•  Continuation of Guam Chamorro Dance Academy Program into 
Japan & North America markets 

•  Development of hotel outreach with cultural activities (i.e. weaving, 
language and dance) 



7/24/14	  

10	  

GVB BUDGET- Sports & Events 

• Additional ($50,000) to support the 3rd Annual Guam International Marathon April 2015.  

 -  Increase awareness, marketing and promotional support in Japan and Korea about 
    Guam’s leading Sports signature event 
 -  2014 overseas participants:     1,310 

         -  2015 overseas goal:              2,000 
 -  2015 projected economic impact:  $4.6 Million 

 (Smart Goal: Focus resources on bigger impact Signature Events) 

• 2015 Pleasure Island BBQ Block Party ($15,000) 

 - Funding needed to execute 2015 BBQ event 
 - Included Art exhibit (GAXVII) in 2014 
 - Grow international field of grillers to compete 
 - Include eating contest in 2015 
 - Market and promote activities in our major source markets 

 (Smart Goal: Add another Signature event which highlights Guam’s unique qualities) 

Sports & Events FY2014 
Approved 

FY2015 
Request 

TOTAL REQUEST $750,000.00 $850,000.00 

GVB BUDGET- Visitor Safety & Satisfaction 

• TOURISM TRAINING INSTITUTE  
• Support the launch of a tourism training facility to further enhance the visitor experience. 

• AIRPORT AMBASSADOR PROGRAM 
• This program is meant to provide passengers additional services at Customs & Quarantine / Customs & 
Border Patrol during the peak arrivals periods. 
         

• TOUR GUIDE CERTIFICATION PROGRAM 
• Public Law 23-136 requires the training and consequent certification of all Guam tour guides and establish 
guidelines regulating the conduct and operations of tour companies, inclusive of personnel.    
       

• EXCELLENCE IN TOURISM AWARDS  
• This program was implemented in 1992 as the Excellence in Tourism Awards. The intent of the program is to 
recognize outstanding industry employees and organizations for their contribution to Guam’s largest 
economic contributor. 
• IN FY13, GVB partnered with GHRA to put on what is now known as the Golden Latte Awards. 

• WELCOME SERVICE 
• GVB’s Welcome Service Program extends a true Hafa Adai welcome for airport and cruise ship passengers as 
well as for inaugural flights, dignitaries, media and other special groups and events.       
           

• VISITOR SAFETY /SATISFACTION PROJECTS  
•  In FY2015, GVB intends to accomplish the following goals: Security Camera System Water Safety & 

Awareness Program, Industry Training, Tourism Safety Message Campaign and the Visitor Safety Officer 
Pilot Program (VSO). 

Visitor Safety & Satisfaction FY2014 
Approved 

FY2015 
Request 

TOTAL REQUEST $250,000.00 $950,000.00 



7/24/14	  

11	  

Capital Improvement Projects 
FY2014 

Approved 
FY2015 
Request 

Tourist District Infrastructure Improvement $640,000.00 $575,000.00 

Tumon & Hagatña Bay Surveillance System Phase II $150,000.00 $340,000.00 

Visitor Safety Officer Pilot Program $150,000.00 * 
*FY15 Request to be funded under Visitor Safety and Satisfaction 

TOTAL $790,000.00 $915,000.00 

•  Significant increase for Surveillance System improvements  

Destination Maintenance 
FY2014 

Approved 
FY2015 
Request 

Tumon & Hagatña Beach Cleaning & Maintenance $250,00.00 $218,777.00 

Tumon Landscape & Maintenance $300,000.00 $351,223.00 

Island Roadway Maintenance $280,000.00 $295,000.00 

Holiday Illumination Project $140,000.00 $140,000.00 

Contract Administration & Inspection Services $90,000.00 $80,000.00 

TOTAL $1,060,000.00 $1,085,000.00 

Goals: 
Continue Island Beautification Projects 
Continue Holiday Illumination Project  



7/24/14	  

12	  

Si Yu’os Ma’ase! 



7/24/14	  

1	  

HÅFA ADAI 
GUAM VISITORS BUREAU 

FY2015 Budget Presentation Part III 

General Manager Karl A. Pangelinan 
July 24, 2014 

PRELIMINARY MTD Visitor Arrivals 
July 1 - 22, 2014 
Total:  76,444 (-1.7%) 

% Market Mix Origin Pax % to LY 
55.6% Japan 42,467 -14.8% 

23.4% Korea 17,873 19.2% 

4.6% US/Hawaii 3,530 11.3% 

7.2% Taiwan 5,472 24.8% 

1.6% China 1,217 101.8% 

2.4% Russia 1,858 419.0% 



7/24/14	  

2	  

GVB BUDGET 

TAF FY2015 BREAKDOWN 
TOTAL % of Total 

FY 2015 TAF Projection $34,500,000.00 100% 

FY 2015 GVB Budget $23,700,000.00 69% 

Direct Appropriations $2,741,485 8% 

Bond Payments $6,997,819.00 20% 

Balance $1,060,696.00 3% 

69%	  

20%	  

3%	  

8%	  

GVB	  Budget	  	  

Bond	  Payments	  

Balance	  

Direct	  Approp.	  



7/24/14	  

3	  

TAF COLLECTIONS 

TAF ANALYSIS 
TAF YOY DIFF 

2011  $22,878,373  

2012 $26,054,475  $3,176,103  

2013  $28,606,196   $2,551,721  

2014  $32,000,000  $3,393,804  

2015  $34,500,000  $2,500,000 

LOTTE HOTEL DUSIT THANI 
Rooms 222   417 

Room Nights 81,030 152,205  
Avg Room Rate  $200  $200  

Occupancy 70%  70% 
Hotel Occupancy Tax $1,247,862 (1 year) $1,171,979 (6 months) 

*Example	  of	  addiHonal	  TAF	  contribuHons	  in	  2014	  &	  2015	  



7/24/14	  

4	  

GVB BUDGET SUMMARY 

FY 2014 REQUEST FY 2014 BUDGET FY 2015 MGMT 
REQUEST % DIFF 

Administration  2,917,120.00   2,917,120.00   3,200,000.00  9.7% 

Marketing  10,478,000.00   10,420,000.00   15,502,000.00  48.8% 

Non-Marketing 
(Research, Sports & 

Events, CHaCO, Visitor 
Safety & Satisfaction) 

 2,150,014.00   2,150,014.00   2,998,000.00  3.9% 

Capital Improvement 
Projects  940,000  940,000.00   915,000.00  -2.7% 

Destination 
Maintenance  1,060,000.00   1,060,000.00   1,085,000.00  2.4% 

TOTAL 18,045,134.00  17,487,134.00   23,700,000.00  35.5% 

GVB BUDGET 

FY 2015 BUDGET Request 
TOTAL: $23,700,000.00 

Administration
; 14% 

Marketing; 
65% 

Capital 
Improvement 
Projects; 4% 

Destination 
Maintenance; 

5% 
Non-

Marketing; 
13% 

Administration; 
17% 

Marketing; 60% 

Capital 
Improvement 
Projects; 5% 

Destination 
Maintenance; 

6% 

Non-
Marketing; 

12% 

FY 2014 BUDGET 
TOTAL: $17,487,134.00 



7/24/14	  

5	  

GVB BUDGET - ADMINISTRATION 

FY 2014 FY 2015 BUDGET 
REQUEST 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION $2,917,120 $3,200,000 

•  Increase of $282,880 over FY2014 

•  Additional personnel costs due to increments, merit bonuses, Medicare 

contributions and health insurance benefits. 

•  Increase in power and water costs 

•  Addition of 4 more new positions (FTEs)  

GVB BUDGET - MARKETING 

•  FY2014 Forecast: 1.35 Million Visitors 
•  FY2015 Projection: 1.427 Million 

•  Refocus on Japan 
•  $2.3M Budget Increase to $8M 
•  FY15 Goal: 940,000 pax 
•  Conduct low season promotions targeting family and group 
•  Continue working with JGTC to improve yield 
•  Improve share of voice from .5% to 1% with Co-op and TV advertising 

•  Continued Growth in Korea 
•  $600K Budget Increase to $2M 
•  FY15 Goal: 280,000 pax 
•  Build Brand Awareness through marketing campaigns 
•  Additional Air Carriers and Gateways 

FY 2014 FY 2015 BUDGET REQUEST 

TOTAL MARKETING $10,420,000 $15,502,000 



7/24/14	  

6	  

GVB BUDGET - MARKETING 

•  Diversify: Russia  

•  Russia budget increased by $220K to reach $700K 

•  Russia Goal: 15,000 pax 

•  Foster relationship with airlines to provide regular direct air service 

•  Increase Guam awareness through continued advertising & key campaigns 

•  Participate in MITT and PITE 2015 

FY 2014 FY 2015 BUDGET REQUEST 

TOTAL MARKETING $10,420,000 $15,502,000 

•  Diversify: China 

•  China budget decrease by $592,500 to $2M 

•  China Goal: 25,000 pax 

•  Increase direct air service 

•  Comprehensively enhance Chinese travelers’ awareness of Guam through travel trade, 

eye-catching advertisement campaigns, exhibitions and sales incentive programs. 

•  Joint promotion with TAs and MICE companies 

GVB BUDGET - MARKETING 

•  Hong Kong 

•  Budget status quo at $215K 

•  FY15 Goal Pax: 14,000 

•  Engage in Joint Promotions, market development and increase media exposure in 

wedding/honeymoon, education, sports, and cultural tourism 

FY 2014 FY 2015 BUDGET REQUEST 

TOTAL MARKETING $10,420,000 $15,502,000 

•  Philippines 

•  Budget increased by $70K to $220,000 

•  FY15 Goal Pax: 12,450 
•  Increase Guam awareness through a sustained year-round publicity program and 

Media Fam Tours 
•  Cultivate MICE market through Guam Product Seminars to corporate incentive 

planners and partnering with corporate account managers for Airlines and TAs 
•  Engage airlines and travel agents for partnership in promotions and trade-related 

industry events 
•  Increase GVB Philippines’ social networking reach 



7/24/14	  

7	  

GVB BUDGET - MARKETING 

•  North America/ Military 

•  Budget increase by $40K to $220K 

•  FY2015 Goal Pax: 80,231 

•  Attend LA Times Travel Show, LA Adventure & Travel Show & Che’lu Inc’s Cultural Festival  

•  VFR – Visiting Friends & Family: Expand outreach 

•  71st Liberation Day activities and travel 

•  Attend Scuba Show and DEMA in June 2015 

•  Social Media – Show Us Your Chamorro Campaign 

FY 2014 FY 2015 BUDGET REQUEST 

TOTAL MARKETING $10,420,000 $15,502,000 

•  Cruise Shipping 

•  FY2015 Goal Pax: 3,500 

•  Work with the Port Authority to improve port arrival/departure experience, as well as 

MCA and regional ports to extend incentives 

•  Create a cruise dedicated website with the MCA & sample cruise itinerary packages 

•  Micronesia Roadshow w/ PATA MIC and other cruise events  

GVB BUDGET - MARKETING 

•  Pacific/Micronesia/Australia/Europe  

•  Budget increase by $22K to $120K 

•  FY15 Goal Pax: 41,800 

•  Integrate & develop campaigns with MicronesiaTour.com with GVB Website 

•  Increase Guam’s Dive Market in Australia/Micronesia as a world class destination 

•  PATA meetings and conferences, link in FestPac 2016/ GMIF 

•  AIDE/Asia Dive Expo 2014 

•  Bi-Annual Micronesian Chief Executive’s Summit (MCES) 

FY 2014 FY 2015 BUDGET REQUEST 

TOTAL MARKETING $10,420,000 $15,502,000 

•  Taiwan 

•  Budget increase by $117K to $487K 

•  FY15 Goal Pax: 54,338 

•  Increase social media outreach efforts (i.e. facebook page to over 60,000 likes) 

•  Promote M.I.C.E Market and key campaigns (Destination Weddings, Sports Tourism/

MICE ,ITF/FESTPAC 2016) 



7/24/14	  

8	  

GVB BUDGET - MARKETING 

•  Global Website: $330,000 

•  In FY2014, GVB launched the new global website in English and will launch Japan and 

Mainland China by the end of the Fiscal Year. In FY 2015, GVB will launch the Russian, 

Korean and Traditional Chinese websites. 

•  Showcase Chamorro Culture & What Guam has to offer visitors. 

•  Cater to growing online audience seeking information about Guam. 

•  Optimized Tablet and Smart Phone sites 

•  Highlight Villages of Guam, history and cultural events. 

•  Connect local businesses directly with the consumer. 

•  Launch Microsites for specific campaign related events (i.e. ShopGuam, BBQ Block Party) 

FY 2014 FY 2015 BUDGET REQUEST 

TOTAL MARKETING $10,420,000 $15,502,000 

GVB BUDGET - MARKETING 
FY 2014 FY 2015 BUDGET REQUEST 

TOTAL MARKETING $10,420,000 $15,502,000 

•  Social Media Support: $290,000 
•  Budget remains the same. 
•  Advanced software to monitor social media channels in 6 different markets. 
•  Ability to respond, monitor or respond to complaints and trending topics. 

•  Branding: $470,000 
•  Budget increased by $20K 
•  Continue success of Håfa Pledge Program & Håfa Adai Rate Program 
•  Support Guam Brand development 
•  Provide community outreach on benefits of tourism 

•  Printing Promotion: $450,000 
•  Budget increased by $188K 
•  Supply promotional materials to key source markets and local campaigns about Guam. 



7/24/14	  

9	  

GVB BUDGET – Research 

RESEARCH FY2014 
Approved 

FY2015 
Request 

TOTAL REQUEST $430,014 $448,000 

•  Slight Increase (4%) 
•  Include Russia & China Exit Surveys 

GVB BUDGET – CHaCO 

Cultural Heritage & Community Outreach 
(CHaCO) 

FY2014 
Approved 

FY2015 
Request 

TOTAL REQUEST $720,000.00 $750,000.00 

•  Continuation of Guam Chamorro Dance Academy Program into 
Japan & North America markets 

•  Development of hotel outreach with cultural activities (i.e. weaving, 
language and dance) 



7/24/14	  

12	  

Si Yu’os Ma’ase! 



7/24/14	  

10	  

GVB BUDGET- Sports & Events 

• Additional ($50,000) to support the 3rd Annual Guam International Marathon April 2015.  

 -  Increase awareness, marketing and promotional support in Japan and Korea about 
    Guam’s leading Sports signature event 
 -  2014 overseas participants:     1,310 

         -  2015 overseas goal:              2,000 
 -  2015 projected economic impact:  $4.6 Million 

 (Smart Goal: Focus resources on bigger impact Signature Events) 

• 2015 Pleasure Island BBQ Block Party ($15,000) 

 - Funding needed to execute 2015 BBQ event 
 - Included Art exhibit (GAXVII) in 2014 
 - Grow international field of grillers to compete 
 - Include eating contest in 2015 
 - Market and promote activities in our major source markets 

 (Smart Goal: Add another Signature event which highlights Guam’s unique qualities) 

Sports & Events FY2014 
Approved 

FY2015 
Request 

TOTAL REQUEST $750,000.00 $850,000.00 

GVB BUDGET- Visitor Safety & Satisfaction 

• TOURISM TRAINING INSTITUTE  
• Support the launch of a tourism training facility to further enhance the visitor experience. 

• AIRPORT AMBASSADOR PROGRAM 
• This program is meant to provide passengers additional services at Customs & Quarantine / Customs & 
Border Patrol during the peak arrivals periods. 
         

• TOUR GUIDE CERTIFICATION PROGRAM 
• Public Law 23-136 requires the training and consequent certification of all Guam tour guides and establish 
guidelines regulating the conduct and operations of tour companies, inclusive of personnel.    
       

• EXCELLENCE IN TOURISM AWARDS  
• This program was implemented in 1992 as the Excellence in Tourism Awards. The intent of the program is to 
recognize outstanding industry employees and organizations for their contribution to Guam’s largest 
economic contributor. 
• IN FY13, GVB partnered with GHRA to put on what is now known as the Golden Latte Awards. 

• WELCOME SERVICE 
• GVB’s Welcome Service Program extends a true Hafa Adai welcome for airport and cruise ship passengers as 
well as for inaugural flights, dignitaries, media and other special groups and events.       
           

• VISITOR SAFETY /SATISFACTION PROJECTS  
•  In FY2015, GVB intends to accomplish the following goals: Security Camera System Water Safety & 

Awareness Program, Industry Training, Tourism Safety Message Campaign and the Visitor Safety Officer 
Pilot Program (VSO). 

Visitor Safety & Satisfaction FY2014 
Approved 

FY2015 
Request 

TOTAL REQUEST $250,000.00 $950,000.00 



7/24/14	  

11	  

Capital Improvement Projects 
FY2014 

Approved 
FY2015 
Request 

Tourist District Infrastructure Improvement $640,000.00 $575,000.00 

Tumon & Hagatña Bay Surveillance System Phase II $150,000.00 $340,000.00 

Visitor Safety Officer Pilot Program $150,000.00 * 
*FY15 Request to be funded under Visitor Safety and Satisfaction 

TOTAL $790,000.00 $915,000.00 

•  Significant increase for Surveillance System improvements  

Destination Maintenance 
FY2014 

Approved 
FY2015 
Request 

Tumon & Hagatña Beach Cleaning & Maintenance $250,00.00 $218,777.00 

Tumon Landscape & Maintenance $300,000.00 $351,223.00 

Island Roadway Maintenance $280,000.00 $295,000.00 

Holiday Illumination Project $140,000.00 $140,000.00 

Contract Administration & Inspection Services $90,000.00 $80,000.00 

TOTAL $1,060,000.00 $1,085,000.00 

Goals: 
Continue Island Beautification Projects 
Continue Holiday Illumination Project  


















